
 

 1 

 Ashland Board of Health Meeting Minutes 

Ashland Town Hall, 101 Main Street, Ashland, MA 

Selectmen’s Meeting Room, 7:00 P.M. 

July 19, 2016 

 

Jon A.  Fetherston, Chairman    Mary Mortensen, Member 

Charles Legassey, Vice-Chairman   Koduvayur Narayana, Member 

Judith Margulies, Clerk    Mark Oram, M.P.H., Agent/Director  

  

Members Present   

Jon Fetherston, Charles Legassey, Judith Margulies, Mary Mortensen and Koduvayur Narayana  

 

Others Present 
Mark Oram, Health Agent / Director 

Laura Clifford, Administrative Secretary 

Joy Vetter, Board of Health Intern 

John F. Blake, resident 

Mark Dassoni, resident 

Steve Morgan, resident 

Paul Saunier, Civilized Solutions 

Eric Dickinson, Civilized Solutions 

Mark Unger, resident 

 

Call to Order   

Mr. Fetherston called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m., noting that the meeting was being audio and video 

recorded live on WACA-TV, and that the agenda was subject to change. 

 

Citizen’s Participation 

Mark Dassoni said that he has reviewed the agenda center on the website and the Board of Health is 

doing well in keeping their minutes online. 

 

Mr. Narayana said that the Charter Review Committee is looking for input from the residents, and if 

anyone has suggestions they may go to the Town website and complete the survey. 

 

Mr. Narayana thanked the Board for removing the restriction previously under Citizen’s Participation. 

 

IG Report – Update from Town Manager 

 
Mr. Fetherston stated that the Town Manager is not able to attend tonight’s meeting.  Mr. Fetherston 

said that after speaking with Michael Herbert today he was told that a draft investigation report is 

complete and there were no findings of fault in the investigation. Mr. Fetherston said Mr. Herbert 

would like to meet with the Board on Monday night to discuss the report during an open meeting.  

Mr. Narayana and Ms. Margulies said they were not available; Ms. Margulies requested the meeting 



 

 2 

be moved so that all members have the opportunity to be present.  Mrs. Mortensen said we have a 

majority of the Board willing to meet. Ms. Margulies inquired as to why this is under the Board of 

Health’s purview. Discussion continued regarding the role of the Health Agent/Director. Mr. 

Fetherston made a motion to schedule the meeting with the Town Manager for Monday. Mrs. 

Mortensen seconded the motion. Ms. Margulies requested reconsideration so that all members may 

attend. Mr. Fetherston said he wants this to be done.  The motion was approved 3-2 (Ms. Margulies 

and Mr. Narayana opposed). 

 

Request for irrigation well, 8 Orchard Road, Mark Unger, owner  

Paul Saunier, Engineer for Civilized Solutions, submitted a plan on behalf of Mark Unger for an 

irrigation well and reviewed Chapter 312, and confirmed he is meeting all requirements.  Mr. Oram 

recommended approval of the Permit.  Mr. Oram said quality and quantity will be tested. Discussion 

continued regarding water bans and private wells.  Mr. Oram said that it is designed per code, and this 

plan has  been approved by Conservation.  Mr. Narayana made a motion to approve the permit.  Mr. 

Legassey seconded the motion. The motion was approved 5-0. 

 

Joy Vetter, Intern, update on project and internship  

 
Mr. Oram introduced Joy Vetter, the Board of Health intern, noting that she is a student at Boston 

University School of Public Health, where her concentration is epidemiology. Ms. Vetter spoke to the 

Board regarding her project which focuses on Opioid Abuse, and noted that she is collaborating with 

Decisions at Every Turn.  Ms. Vetter showed the Board the brochure attachments and discussed her 

interactions with the local pharmacies.  Mrs. Mortensen suggested distributing the brochure at the 

Farmer’s Market.  Mr. Fetherston stated that it is most important to reach children while still at the 

Middle School age, and would like the Board to take an active role. The Board congratulated Ms. 

Vetter on her good work. 

 

Dr. Green,  LLC; Virtual Golf, 200 Homer Avenue, request for waiver from Fats, Oils and Grease 

Management Regulations  

  
James Moses, Daniel Moses and Jason Thomas, business partners for the Dr. Green Virtual Golf 

Center, told the Board about their indoor golf business they are planning to open in the fall.  James 

Moses explained that they would like to request a waiver from the Grease Trap Regulations 315.4B, 

based upon the fact that the only food they would be serving would be  prepackaged or microwavable 

food items. They have not yet submitted a Food Permit Application.  Mr. Oram recommended 

conditional approval of the waiver request, and noted that Roy Correia, Water and Sewer 

Superintendent, also recommended approval.  Mr. Oram added that the waiver would be granted on a 

yearly basis, based on performance, as all the waivers are.  Mr. Oram also said they will need to have 

an internal grease trap which, he said, Mr. Correia suggested should be oversized.   

 

Mr. Legassey made a motion to approve the waiver of the external grease trap for Dr. Green with the 

proviso that this waiver is in place through December 2016 and that the recommendation of a slightly 

larger internal grease trap be installed.  Mrs. Mortensen seconded the motion. The motion was 

approved 5-0.  The Board wished them well on their opening in October / November. 

 



 

 3 

Vote of Confidence as to the qualifications and expertise of the Health Agent as previously 

reviewed by the Board of  Health at their June 7, 2016 meeting  
 

Mr. Fetherston stated that Town Counsel had suggested the Board retake their vote of confidence of 

Mr. Oram’s qualifications.  Mrs. Mortensen said she would like to again make a motion that we take a 

vote of confidence in Mark and the expertise he has shown, that she thinks he deserves it.  Mr. 

Legassey seconded the motion.  Mr. Narayana stated that after only 14 months as a Board of Health 

Member, doesn’t feel that is long enough to make a statement as to his qualifications. Mr. Narayana 

said he has nothing to add, and asked this be deferred.  Ms. Margulies stated that she stands by her 

comments made previously stated.  Mr. Fetherston feels that Mr. Oram is one of the most outstanding 

public servants he has had the pleasure to work with.  The motion was approved 3-1-1 (Ms. Margulies 

opposed, Mr. Narayana abstained).  

 

Old and New Business 

New food establishment known as Erica’s Ristorantė, formerly Kelly’s 

 
Mr. Oram explained that the new owners of 78 Front Street, formerly Kelly’s, are looking to change a 

few things, including the menu; they are looking to open within a month or two.  Mr. Oram 

recommended approval of their food permit application, and noted they do have an external grease 

trap which has been inspected and cleaned.  Mr. Oram said he was told by the new owners that 

employees would receive anti-choking training.  Mr. Narayana made a motion to approve the permit. 

Mrs. Mortensen seconded the motion. Mr. Oram mentioned that the Permit will not be issued until a 

complete review prior to opening.  The motion was approved 5-0. 

 

Mr. Oram stated that, because there may not be another Board meeting prior to the Dragonfly Festival 

on August 13th, he would like the Board to consider voting to approve permits received from TC 

Scoops, Olson Foods and Anzio’s Brick Oven Pizza tonight.  Mr. Oram suggested approval of the 

permits conditional to his review.  Mr. Narayana suggested the date of issue be placed on all the 

permits for easier tracking. Mr. Narayana made a motion to approve the permits.  Mrs. Mortensen 

seconded the motion.  Ms. Margulies inquired as to why there will not be another scheduled meeting.  

The Board approved the motion 4-0-1 (Ms. Margulies abstained, due to process). 

 

Request for Installer’s Permit, Robert’s Excavating 

 
Mr. Oram explained that he has experience working with Robert San Clements, and for full disclosure 

noted that Mr. San Clements has been on the Board of Health of Sherborn.  Mr. Oram said he has no 

issues with his work and recommends approval of the License for the balance of the year.  Mr. 

Narayana inquired, and Mr. Oram responded, that most times referrals are verbal, not written.  Mr. 

Legassey made a motion to accept the permit application of Robert San Clements with the proviso of 

a pre-construction meeting prior to any septic installation.  Mrs. Mortensen seconded the motion.  Mr. 

Narayana asked that the permit be issued with the date of issuance on the permit; the Board agreed.   

The motion was approved 4-0-1 (Ms. Margulies abstained due to inadequate information). 

 

 

 

 



 

 4 

 

Open Meeting Law Complaint - follow-up 

 

Mr. Fetherston explained that the Board of Health received a letter from Town Counsel regarding her 

ethical responsibility as it relates to the Open Meeting Law Complaint filed by Stephen Morgan.  Mr. 

Fetherston said that the Board also received a notice from the Attorney General’s office granting an 

extension.  Stephen Morgan responded that he was surprised an extension was needed, and thought 

his complaint was resolved with the Board at the last meeting.  Mr. Fetherston explained that since the 

complaint was filed with the Town Clerk, it is forwarded to Town Counsel, and Attorney Mead feels 

it would be unethical to admit to a violation when she feels there wasn’t one. Mr. Morgan said he 

filed a copy with the Town Clerk but thought the Board would represent themselves in their response.   

 

Mr. Fetherston stated, as a dedicated volunteer, if Town Counsel says we did not commit a violation, 

he will not risk personal liability over a misunderstanding.  Mrs. Mortensen agreed. Discussion 

continued regarding Attorney Mead’s correspondence.  Mr. Fetherston said we took corrective action 

with the vote of confidence.  Mr. Fetherston made a motion that we take Attorney Mead’s advice and 

do not admit that there was an Open Meeting Law violation.  Mrs. Mortensen seconded the motion. 

Mr. Legassey said that by retaking the vote, that is an admission of a violation. Mr. Morgan stated that 

if it goes this other way, his letter to the AG will say that the Board is intentionally misrepresenting 

what happened, adding that he doesn’t know if that is more risky to the Board then just admitting the 

mistake. 

 

Mr. Legassey made a new motion that the Board instruct counsel to draft a response to the complaint 

based upon our meeting of July 7
th

, covering the issues, regarding the item not on the agenda, that we 

agreed by a unanimous vote last meeting to have the draft minutes available in 10 days. Mr. 

Fetherston seconded the motion.  Mr. Narayana requested Mr. Legassey to restate the Motion.  Mr. 

Legassey made a motion to request Attorney Mead to respond to Mr. Morgan’s complaint of an Open 

Meeting Law violation by stating that, with regards to the agenda item, we have corrected that, that 

we have resolved the minutes item at the last meeting, and will have the draft minutes available within 

10 days, that we have agreed to having the itemized list of documents attached to the minutes. Mr. 

Morgan said he would be happy to agree with the response if he sees that it says that.  Ms. Margulies 

said she has read that Attorney Mead said she wouldn’t use that draft.  Mr. Narayana asked if 

Attorney Mead doesn’t want to write it, can the Board write it.    

 

Mr. Fetherston stated that Attorney Mead she will not represent the Board if we take Mr. Morgan’s 

response to her.  Mr. Legassey withdrew his motion.  Mr. Legassey asked Mr. Morgan if we respond 

with the legal advice we are given, since we have stated in two meetings that the Board acknowledges 

our faults, if he is okay with the fact that the Board has agreed and has made corrective actions, and 

can he drop it too.  Mr. Morgan said he feels this is spinning the story.  Mr. Fetherston understands 

Mr. Morgan’s position, but does not want to open the Board up to liability that potentially doesn’t 

exist. Mr. Fetherston made a motion to take the advice of counsel, admit that we did revote the vote of 

confidence of Mr. Oram to clear that violation, and we will admit to no other open meeting law 

violation. Mr. Legassey seconded the motion. The motion passed 3-1-1 (Ms. Margulies opposed, Mr. 

Narayana abstained).  Mr. Fetherston said he will reach out to Counsel tomorrow to draft a response 

to the AG’s office, which Mr. Morgan will be copied on.  Mr. Narayana asked if the Board needs to 

vote to approve the draft response, Mr. Fetherston said we agreed to let her draft the response.   



 

 5 

KG Narayana requested agenda items: 

Formation of sub-committee for Policies and Procedures 

 
Mr. Fetherston said the Board voted on May 11

th
 to approve the Board’s Policies and Procedures, and 

there has been discussion on forming a sub-committee to amend the Policies and Procedures.  Mr. 

Legassey stated that he has looked at both Ms. Margulies’ and Mr. Narayana’s drafts and noted that 

there are legal issues that would need to be reviewed by an attorney.   Mr. Narayana suggested having 

this issue on the retreat agenda.  The Board discussed dates for a retreat and decided to discuss this at 

the next meeting. 

 

Heat Stress in Schools 

 
Mr. Narayana said heat stress was debated for over 4 years and asked what is holding it up.  Mrs. 

Mortensen said that the school is holding it up and not answering.  Mr. Fetherston stated that he and 

Mr. Elbirt went to a School Committee Meeting and got a cool reception.  Mr. Fetherston is also 

concerned about teachers and their performance if they are in an unhealthy work environment, adding 

that it is unfair to both students and teachers.  Mr. Fetherston explained that they fought for 

ventilation, and were told they would be in touch, but never heard back, adding that Mrs. Mortensen 

tried to continue on the issue by inviting them to a Board of Health meeting, which they responded 

that the Board of Health could come to their meeting.  Mrs. Mortensen asked the School Committee 

to share their plan on this issue, and they haven’t.  Mr. Fetherston said he would send Jim Adams an 

email. 

 

M.G.L. C.41, Section 81U as it relates to the RTD Housing Project 

 
Mr. Narayana said that Mr. Oram sent an email response to his inquiry regarding Chapter 41 that 

Town Counsel has said that the RTD is not a subdivision and does not fall under the Chapter 41 

regulations.  Mr. Narayana spoke about the blasting reports that left open the issue of the down water 

contamination, which also states four monitor wells should be dug to collect data prior to blasting, 

during blasting and post blasting.  Mr. Narayana stated that he read on the CoUrbanize website that 

they will be requesting irrigation wells, Mr. Oram confirmed they have not yet requested any 

irrigation well permits.  Mr. Narayana doesn’t understand why subdivisions haven’t come through the 

Board, Ms. Margulies said that subdivisions are supposed to come to the Board of Health, but asked if 

there is a similar process for other projects not classified the same way. Mr. Fetherston read portions 

of the blasting study. Mr. Narayana suggested the Board come up with a plan of action and invite the 

developer to a meeting.  Ms. Margulies said that moving forward the process needs to be organized.  

Mr. Fetherston asked Mr. Oram for the contact information for the developer in order to contact them. 

The Board discussed getting together to meet, and discussed the public forum next Wednesday. Ms. 

Margulies inquired if the DEP and EPA information to the Board of Health has been complete and 

stated there is tight funding, she suggested bringing it up with the Town Manager at Monday night’s 

meeting. 

 

0 Megunko Road as it relates to the proximity to Trolley Brook 

 
Mr. Narayana inquired, in regards to the DEP letter forwarded to the Board by Mr. Oram, if the Board 

requires the developer to follow the restrictions and if the Board should oversee this.  Mr. Oram said 



 

 6 

that at Tech Review it was discussed with the developer that if there is any discovery of any 

contaminates the job must be stopped, and EPA, DEP and Board of Health would all need to be 

contacted.  Ms. Margulies said 0 Megunko Road is on the plume, and what was supposed to be a 

garage has turned out to be a 7 floor office and work space, and we should look into architectural 

guidelines. Mr. Oram said EPA will require testing to check for trichloride ethane, and will be built 

with a better foundation with radon vents.  Ms. Margulies said there are people without mitigation 

systems, and feels the Board of Health should be involved, and this is part of a larger discussion.  Mr. 

Fetherston asked to add this to the next agenda. 

 

(Mrs. Mortensen left the meeting at 9:50 p.m.) 

 

Health Agent / Director’s Report: 

FY16 and FY17 Budget, Revolving Fund – Update 

 
Mr. Oram stated that there has been a request from the DPW Assistant Director for the removal of 

beavers, which has been an additional cost.   

 

Mr. Oram said that he has sent two additional Request for Proposal’s out to vendors for the Landfill 

monitoring as instructed by the Town Manager, noting that many other towns use ECS. 

 

Mr. Oram explained that we are waiting for the accounting department to update our budget, and will 

provide to the Board the final FY16 budget, as well as the FY17. 

 

Food Inspector – Update 
 

Mr. Oram said that Human Resources has received some interest in the food inspector position and he 

has spoken to a few potential candidates.  Mr. Oram said the job is posted on Indeed.com. Mr. 

Narayana asked Mr. Oram to send him the link to the ad. 

 

Emergency approvals for beaver dams 

 
Mr. Oram asked the Board to approve the emergency approvals for work at the culverts at Spring and 

Main Street.  Mr. Narayana made a motion to approve the emergency beaver permits as submitted by 

Mark Oram.  Mr. Legassey seconded the motion.  The motion was approved 4-0 (Mrs. Mortensen had 

left the meeting). 

 

Acceptance of Minutes:  June 21, June 27, 2016  and July 7, 2016 

 
Ms. Margulies stated she still has same concerns that the minutes are selective, and do not reflect the 

views of all members, adding that she will continue to object to the minutes and express her concern.  

Mr. Narayana said there are inaccuracies, and has not completed reviewing the drafts.  Mr. Narayana 

said he has reviewed the July 7
th

 draft minutes. Ms. Margulies stated she only sees one vote taken 

during Mr. Morgan’s Open Meeting Law discussion. Mr. Oram said he would listen to the tapes 

himself and check.  Mr. Fetherston asked Ms. Margulies for her statement she read during the June 

21
st
 meeting.  Ms. Margulies responded that those were her notes and weren’t read verbatim. Mr. 

Fetherston believes it was a prepared statement and is part of the public record and asked that she 



 

 7 

provide a copy.  Mr. Narayana suggested corrections to the July 7
th

 minutes, Mr. Oram said we would 

review the audio and incorporate the changes. Mr. Oram suggested Ms. Margulies email her 

suggested changes. 

 

No action was taken on acceptance of Minutes. 

 

Discuss dates for future Board of Health Meetings: August 16, September 6 and 20, 2016 
 

Mr. Fetherston stated that after our July 25
th

 meeting, our next scheduled meeting will be August 16
th

, 

as has been the summer schedule, and the Board may schedule another meeting if necessary.   

 

Mr. Fetherston suggested a motion to adjourn, Mr. Legassey so moved the motion. Ms. Margulies 

made a motion to have two meetings in August rather than one.  Mr. Legassey said a motion for 

adjournment was made, there can be no further discussion. Mr. Fetherston seconded Mr. Legassey’s 

motion.  The motion was approved 3-1 (Ms. Margulies was opposed due to her wanting to discuss 

having more meetings rather than a summer schedule). 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 10:28 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 8 

 

 

ASHLAND BOARD OF HEALTH 

DOCUMENTS REVIEWED AT THE 7/19/2016 MEETING 

(All items stored in the Board of Health files unless otherwise noted) 

 

1. Irrigation Well Permit Application and Plan, 8 Orchard Road 

2. Project summary and brochure created by Joy Vetter, BOH Intern  

3. Dr. Greens Indoor Golf Center 

a. Waiver request/letter 

b.  Presentation slides 

c.  Recommendation of Approval from Roy Correia, DPW 

4. Erica’s Restaurant - Food Permit Application 

5. Robert’s Excavating - Installer’s Permit Application 

6. Open Meeting Law Complaint 

a. Letter from Attorney Lisa Mead to the Board of Health 

b. Request for Extension from Attorney Lisa Mead to the Attorney General’s office 

7. Policies and Procedures, drafts from J. Margulies and KG Narayana 

8. Email from Chairperson Mary Mortensen to Laurie Tosti, School Committee re: heat stress 

9. Copy of Ch.41, Section 81U 

10. 0 Megunko Road, email and plan from DEP 

11. Town of Southampton Board of Health Regs (from KG Narayana) 

12. Emergency Beaver Permits 

13. Draft minutes, June 21, 2016, June 27, 2016, and July 7, 2016 

14. Audio Recording of Meeting Available 

 


